
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE56 

The Jasper County Commissioners met this date at 8:30 A.M. C.S.T at 910 S Sparling Ave., 
Rensselaer, Indiana with the following members present: Rein Bontreger, Craig Standish and Ryan 
Hilton. Also present were Auditor, Diana Boersma, Deputy Auditor: Cynthia Slaughter, and Eric 
Beaver, the Attorney that represents the Commissioners. Those present stood and recited the 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Bontreger. There was a brief moment of silence following the 
Pledge. 

MINUTES: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the minutes from June 2, 2025 as presented, Mr. 
Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the minutes from the Executive Session June 23, 2025, Mr. 
Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

PAYROLL CLAIMS: Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the payroll claims with checks 
dated June 13, 2025 and June 30, 2025 as presented, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. 

CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the claims, as presented, Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 

CORONER BOERSMA FORENSIC CENTER UPDATE: Mr. Boersma stated they have not been. 
able to have a meeting with their board members yet concerning the Forensic Center. Mr. Boersma 
stated he would like permission from the Commissioners to move forward on a portable X-ray 
machine for the annex, to put in the morgue. He stated they have had incidences they had to take 
north or elsewhere and that they should have something onsite to do it with. He stated it will cost 
around $60-62,0000 and that it will come with a warranty and everything that they need to put it 
together. He stated it is not a film machine but is digital. Mr. Boersma stated it would be a 
refurbished unit and the company is located out of Fishers Indiana. 

Mr. Standish stated he received a message from Coroner Boersma about the necessity for a lift in 
the morgue. It was discussed if it would be an overhead trolley system or something on the floor. 
Mr. Boersma stated that would depend on what they decide to do with the forensic center. Mr. 
Bontreger asked Mr. Boersma if at their next committee meeting could they prepare a list of what 
their priority needs are and get some quotes for a lift and then present that to the Commissioners. 
Mr. Boersma agreed. 

SHERIFF WILLIAMSON: Sheriff Williamson updated the Commissioners regarding activities 
and traffic patterns that occurred on July 3rd, after I-65 was closed. 

Sheriff Williamson stated he needed permission to spend money to replace the fire alarm system 
that is at the jail. He stated it goes off periodically because the sensors are going bad. He stated it 
will cost under $20,000 and they will pay for it out of their budget. Sheriff Williamson stated this 
is the company they have been using, they are the cheapest, and they have been maintaining the 
system for quite some time. Sheriff Williamson stated right now they have alarms going off and 
have had to unhook the alarm in the air handler so it won't set off the alarms anymore and this 
upgrade has to be done. He stated it is a 2008 building and the system is 17 years old and this is 
the frrst upgrade. Attorney Beaver asked if this is just an equipment purchase or if there is also a 
maintenance agreement. Sheriff Williamson stated they already have a maintenance agreement 
with this company. Attorney Beaver stated if they already have a maintenance agreement that 
covers any sort of warranty issue he is ok with the contract as long as the Commissioners and 
Sheriff are good with the price. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the upgrade for the fire 
system, as requested by the Sheriff, and to approve the Sheriff to sign the agreement on behalf of 
the Commissioners, Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

WHEATFILED TOWNSHIP TRUSTEE DAVID MYERS: Mr. Myers stated the Wheatfield 
Township Trustees office and the Rotary Club are still meeting regularly and are fundraising this 
year. He stated he came to the Commissioners a few months ago and requested $500,000 from the 
county to go towards their Splash Pad project and had returned to review that request. He stated 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE57 

WHEATFILED TOWNSHIP TRUSTEE DAVID MYERS CONT'D: their fundraising goal is $2 
million. He stated this amount also includes a buffer to help with service and maintenance costs 
they might incur in the early years of operation. Mr. Myers reviewed their fundraising efforts and 
stated they are facing some challenges. He stated he thinks if they had a bit more raised then he 
would be able to get more contributions from private companies and individuals. He stated they 
have fundraised $20,000 towards this project to date. He stated the DNR grants are no longer 
available this year. He stated they have met with the Jasper Newton Foundation and they are 
interested in working with them in the future, hopefully next year. Mr. Myers stated that due to 
recent census data they are no longer in a low-income corridor in Wheatfield Township and that 
has limited the available grants. Mr. Myers stated he has had informal conversation with some 
County Council members and they are supportive but he has not addressed them formally. Mr. 
Bontreger and Mr. Hilton suggested Mr. Myers present this at the July Joint Session. Mr. Bontreger 
stated they are supportive of the project but cannot commit to a number today. 

Mr. Myers reviewed Wheatfield Townships Fire Station build. He stated that is another $2 million 
project for a complete build and $1.1 million for just the outer shell. He stated currently Wheatfield 
Township rents two bays for their apparatus and this allows them to keep their equipment in 
Wheatfield Township jurisdiction and to provide services to the westerly residents. He stated the 
new firehouse will allow them to get away from the constant rent that keeps going up. 

Mr. Myers stated ifhe were to prioritize the two projects he would chose the Fire Station because 
that is for public safety. 

TOWN OF REMINGTON JOHN CRIPE: Mr. Cripe stated he had attended a County Council 
meeting and they put it in their minutes that they approved the requested contribution and he is 
requesting a commitment letter. Mr. Cripe stated he has a form letter that he can provide to the 
Commissioners. Mr. Bontreger requested the form letter be emailed to the Commissioners. He 
requested the Commissioners and Attorney Beavery review/complete it. 

JASPER COUNTY COMMUNITY SERVICES SHARON COLEE: Ms. Colee thanked the 
Commissioners for being proactive to their needs. Ms. Colee stated Freedom Pressure Washing 
that was approved in May has been completed and she is submitting the invoice for payment. She 
stated she is submitting an invoice from BA Lawn Care for payment. She stated the bill was for 
stump removal and rock installation. She stated, as their budget allows, they are removing bushes 
that are close to the foundation of the building and causing ongoing problems. Ms. Colee stated 
she did not expect the bill from BA Lawn Care to be so much and would like to ask the 
Commissioners to consider paying it. Mr. Standish asked if they had the money to pay for this out 
of their budget. Ms. Colee stated yes, as long as nothing else breaks they have the money. Mr. 
Standish stated he would recommend they pay for the BA Lawn Care bill of $610 out of their 
budget. Mr. Hilton stated he supports that recommendation. 

There was a discussion regarding who maintains the ditch bank to the east side of the Jasper County 
Community Services building in DeMotte. Ms. Colee stated Aarons Landscaping, through the 
Commissioners, maintains it. 

Ms. Colee stated there are four furnaces at the Pase location and they now need to replace another 
furnace. She stated they have already replaced 2 furnaces and this would be the third. She stated 
this one is located on the senior side and has water/rust, deterioration, and has been condemned. 
She stated she received three bids from Illiana, Krooswyk, and Ziants Mechanical. She stated Lyle 
Ziants with Ziants Mechanical, who has done a lot of work for them over the last few years, is at 
the meeting. 

Lyle Ziants stated he would like to give Jasper County kudos for taking care of their seniors, where 
everyone else is shrieking back. He stated in South Porter County there is nothing for their seniors 
and the town took back the building. Mr. Ziants reviewed the new refrigerant change that started 
January 1st, 2025. He stated there are two refrigerants 454 Band R 32. Mr. Ziants explained the 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE58 

JASPER COUNTY COMMUNITY SERVICES SHARON COLEE CONT'D: difference in 
refrigerants, the cost differences, and advised the Commissioners to keep this in mind when 
selecting a unit. Mr. Ziants stated they can still use the blower on the condemned unit that it is 
only the furnace they cannot use so the Commissions have time to make a decision. 

Ms. Colee stated Steve's Specialized Services has completed the work on the side of the building. 
She stated they sent an additional estimate to the Commissioners for tuck pointing that needs to be 
done. Mr. Standish stated there are some places with cracking and some that is missing. Mr. 
Standish stated before any repairs can be done the storage buildings on the west side are going to 
have to be moved away from the building because they are to close. Mr. Bontreger stated they will 
take this under advisement. 

JUDGE BAILEY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS: Judge Bailey stated this is for informational 
purposes and to seek the Commissioners blessing as this will have to go to the Community 
Corrections Advisory Board for approval also. He stated CEPP does consulting for Community 
Corrections programs. He stated he has a contract for CEPP to evaluate the Community 
Corrections Program. He stated they would make recommendations to make sure that they are up 
to speed on current policies, best practices, and case management. He stated the contract amount 
is $16,035 and this would be a comprehensive overview of what the Community Corrections in 
Jasper County does. Judge Bailey stated he is not seeking any money because they have several 
funds that they could pay this out of. He stated he has a contact that he can forward to Attorney 
Beaver for review. 

NORTH AND EAST SIDEWALK BIDS: Mr. Bontreger stated they only received one bid, from 
Grimmer Construction. Mr. Bontreger stated Grimmer Construction's base bid is $599,039. 
Additive I is $45,000 and that is to address the comer that holds water on the sidewalk and in the 
winter turns into ice. Mr. Standish stated that would put them at $650,000. Mr. Bontreger stated 
the city (Rensselaer) has worked with Grimmer Construction before and asked Bryce with the city 
ifhe was satisfied with them. Bryce stated yes. Mr. Bontreger stated they asked others for bids but 
they declined. Attorney Beaver stated the Commissioners could make a motion to either accept or 
reject the bid pending legal review and Kimley Hom review. Mr. Hilton made a motion to accept 
the bid under advisement, pending legal review from Attorney Beaver and Kimley Hom, Mr. 
Standish seconded, and the motion carried. Attorney Beaver stated accepting the bid does not 
obligate the county to spend the money or to proceed on the contract, it just identifies the contractor 
and the amount. Mr. Hilton asked Bryce if he could look and see what the cost was to the city 
when they redid their sidewalks and Bryce stated he will look into that. Mr. Bontreger stated the 
permit for the project is ready to go. 

AUDITOR BOERSMA: Ms. Boersma stated she has a state certification form that needs the 
Commissioners signatures. She stated this form states there are zero covered bridges in Jasper 
County. 

Ms. Boersma stated she also had the 2024 Annual Financial Report that needed the Commissioners 
signatures. 

GOOD SAMARITAN FOOD PANTRY MAUREEN EGAN: Ms. Egan stated she is Vice 
President of the Good Samaritan Food Pantry in Rensselaer. She stated the food pantry was 
established in 1983 by the Rensselaer Area Ministerial Association and is a 50l(c)(3). She stated 
they are currently located at 227 South College Avenue. She stated they are entirely volunteer and 
are supported by donations whether those be food, household items, gifts, or grants. She stated 
food insecurity is a growing problem in Jasper County. She stated in 2023 they served 4,640 
individual and that rose to 6,036 in 2024. She stated in the first four months of 2025 they have 
experienced an 80% increase in their expenses for groceries and milk compared to the first four 
months of 2024. She stated with the recent SNAP and Medicaid cuts they are expecting their 
service numbers to grown. She stated she would like the Commissioners to consider including 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGES9 

GOOD SAMARITAN FOOD PANTRY MAUREEN EGAN CONT'D: them in their annual 
budget and she would be able to provide any kind of information that they would request and can 
submit it at any interval the Commissioners prefer. Ms. Egan stated the majority of people are 
coming from Jasper County but they do service some coming from Newton, White, and Benton 
counties. She stated the Commissioners are welcome to visit and see the pantry in operation. Ms. 
Egan stated even though there are food pantries in Remington and Wheatfield they are still getting 
people from Remington, DeMotte, Wheatfield, and Rensselaer. She stated they also serve people 
from Francisville and Fair Oaks. 

MERCURY FIBER: Mr. Jack Haberlin stated Mercury Fiber uses Irvin Cable. He stated Irvin 
Cable came in the last meeting with an application that had many linear feet of aerial and 
underground too and they have been great to work with. Mr. Haberlin stated Mercury Fiber is here 
with a lot of right of way permits. 

Matt Stimmel stated he is the construction manager for Mercury Fiber. He stated he brought with 
him his team from Mercury and Irvin Cable. He stated the company was formed in Kansas twenty 
years ago with the mission to bring broadband service to the rural underserved areas and since then 
have expanded into Missouri, Michigan, Ohio, and Indiana. He stated they have 350 route miles 
of fiber they have put in Starke County and that is a combination of above ground and underground 
fiber. Mr. Stimmel stated they have multiple service centers throughout the state to support the 
fiber builds. He stated he is the construction manager for Ohio and Indiana. He stated there is a 
construction coordinator and a construction inspector that are both in the market every day. He 
stated his goal is to get in front of the builds and communicate with the county and the citizens so 
people know that they are there and what they are doing. He stated he has reached out to the 
County Engineer and met with one of the Commissioners and discovered a couple of different 
avenues that they can use to reach out to the citizens are through Facebook and the newspaper. He 
stated this would be to let people know they are coming and not on a sales perspective, this way 
the county does not get a lot of phone calls about it. He stated they are working with Jasper County 
REMC and are replacing in excess of 180 utility poles to help facilitate the build and that is 
predominantly on the northern end or the norther 2/3rds of the county. Mr. Stimmel stated he has 
2 maps that show the whole build that he will be leaving today. He stated he holds his construction 
crews accountable and personally goes out to QC to make sure remediation is being done 
accordingly. He stated Adam, Construction manager for Indiana is here today as is Ramona 
Newsom the construction coordinator. He stated their construction inspector, Danny, is in Knox 
today. Mr. Stimmel stated he brought with him their construction company Irvin Cable and they 
can help field questions. Mr. Stimmel stated Mercury is the Internet Service Provider and Irvin 
Cable is the contractor. He stated their goal is that they build it, they maintain it, and they install 
it. He stated they are building fiber networks and are here for the long term. He stated they do not 
go into big metro areas in large cities and they are maintaining their mission to help provide 
broadband fiber internet access to the underserved areas. He stated they are actively replacing 
poles on 231 as we speak but they can get pulled out for storm damage so these things can speed 
up and slow down. Mr. Stimmel stated he has made contact with the Surveyors office and have 
everything that they need there. He stated they would like to be out of the area in September as 
this build covers a lot of rural areas and they do not want to be out there when the semis and 
combines are out. Mr. Stimmel stated if his memory serves they will be installing 260 miles of 
fiber. 

Mr. Jim Alexander with Irvin Cable stated he has been with the company for 27 years and the 
company is close to 40 years old. He stated they started off as a mom and pop, and got a little 
bigger, then a lot bigger, and ended up getting absorbed into the largest utility contractor in the 
U.S. He stated they do fiber underground and aerial. He stated they have an office in Knox, Indy, 
and Marco Indiana. He stated they hire local people in the back-office side of things that will 
continue working when the build is over and these people will do maintenance. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE60 

MERCURY FIBER CONT'D: Mr. Stimmel stated part of this build is through a State of Indiana 
Broadband grant. Mr. Stimmel reviewed the maps he brought. Mr. Haberlin stated he would take 
those maps with him. Mr. Stimmel stated he would like to come back at least once and give the 
Commissioners an update. 

Mr. Bontreger stated they have various permits for this Mercury Fiber build. Mr. Standish made a 
motion to approve the permits, based on County Engineer Jack Haberlin's recommendation to 
approve them as presented, Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

Mr. Haberlin asked the Commissioners, that in this particular case, because he has to go though 
all the permits for the invoicing if they would like to authorize him to sign them. Mr. Standish 
made a motion to give Mr. Haberlin permission to approve all the Mercury Fiber permits for this 
phase of the project on behalf of the Commissioners, Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

Mr. Haberlin stated he has 2 other right of way permits. He stated one is for BrightSpeed and the 
other is for Comcast. Mr. Haberlin stated the BrightSpeed permit is for 2,000 feet and he did not 
see a problem with that one. He stated the other one is for Comcast and it is 59 feet and he does 
not see a problem with that one. Mr. Bontreger stated Mr. Haberlin makes the recommendation to 
approve the buried cable permits for BrightSpeed and Comcast. Mr. Standish made the motion to 
approve the permits, as presented, Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

KIMLEY HORN INVOICES: Mr. Bontreger stated there are a couple of invoices for the work 
they have done regarding the sidewalks project of$675.30 and $1,300. He stated these are invoices 
that are a result of the agreement that they already have in place with Kimley Hom. Mr. Standish 
made a motion to approve the invoices from Kimley Hom, consultant concerning the sidewalks 
project, for $675.30 and $1,300. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

JASPER COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY JUDY CANEY: Ms. Caney stated she would like 
to thank the Commissioners for their support of $3,000/year since 2016. She stated this year they 
do request the support be increased to $15,000 to help pay for utilities, small renovation projects, 
the museum, and small projects at the historic buildings at the Jasper County Fairgrounds. She 
stated the Historical Society coordinates and fundraises for the work that gets done at the historic 
buildings at the fairgrounds even though the county actually owns the buildings. She stated many 
of the grant opportunities have been eliminated or drastically reduced in the last three months. She 
stated they will be presenting a possible additional request at the August meeting to specifically 
help with museum renovations. Ms. Caney stated they are open during the fair during which they 
will have tours, activities, stories to be told, and postcards for people to mail from their post office. 
She stated this year they will be placing a historic marker in DeMotte for Charlie Halleck. 

JASPER COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SARA DEYOUNG: Ms. De Young stated 
she approached the Commissioners about two months about doing a housing strategy for Jasper 
County. She stated other communities have done this. She stated there is a housing need across the 
country and the state but especially in rural areas. She stated this type of information is needed to 
show developers that there is potential to make money by developing houses and apartments in 
our area. She stated she has letters of support from local employers. She stated she has received 
grants from Nipsco, Wabash Valley, and the Community Foundation for a housing study. She 
stated Remington offered financial support. She stated DeMotte offered a letter of support but no 
financial support. Ms. De Young stated she has spoke to elected officials from the county and the 
surrounding area and their concern is how do we maintain our agriculture heritage and countryside 
and this would address that. She stated she has secured $20,000 in grants and financial support 
from other entities. She stated this would be a four to six-month process once started. She stated 
they would come in and work with the county, work with each of the communities in order to see 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE61 

JASPER COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SARA DEYOUNG CONT'D: what parcels 
of land might be available to develop. She stated they would work directly with town managers 
and planning commissions so it would be a very specific plan for each community. She stated most 
of the population increase in Jasper County has occurred outside of the limits of the towns and this 
increases the services that the Commissioners are expected to provide for emergency management 
and that type of thing. She stated each community and the county would end up with the report 
and then they would create a 1 pager with promotional information for potential housing 
developments. Mr. Bontreger stated part of the ongoing process is for us to make plans for 
ourselves as opposed to just letting outside entities come in and dictate the plans. Ms. De Young 
stated she wanted to thank Scott Walstra for helping to rally the northern end of the county. 

ATTORNEY BEAVER: 

WEED BOARD ORDINANCE: Attorney Beaver stated the weed board had been established 
many years ago but had gone away and there is nobody who is serving any sort of active term. He 
stated he drafted ordinance 07-07-2025A that complies with the State law that will reestablish the 
board, and will establish four-year terms for each of the five board members, all to be appointed 
by the Board of Commissioners. He stated those terms will be starting January 1, 2025, and then 
the Commissioners have the authority to fill vacancies. He stated the Commissioners in their 
annual reappointment process will be able to do that every four years and there is no reason to not 
appoint the qualified people to those positions as soon as the ordinance is passed. He stated it will 
also give the weed board authority to administer any funds that are sitting dormant and also to 
develop a marijuana eradication program to expend any monies for that program. Lana Zimmer, 
Soil and Water Conservation District, stated the state statue has four voting members and the fifth 
member serves as an advisory role from the Purdue Extension. Attorney Beaver stated yes. 

Ms. Zimmer stated their belief is that they should have representation from every region of the 
county because the landscape changes as you move north to south and the concerns and invasive 
species present in each region varies. Ms. Zimmer stated they are in the process of hiring a 
technical expert that the Commissioners previously approved. She stated they are searching for 
someone who has expertise in invasive species so that they can also serve as an advisory role for 
this new board. She stated they would like the Commissioners to consider a county vehicle that 
might come available for them as they anticipate more travel. Ms. Zimmer stated they would like 
the Commissioners to consider Jim Martin from Walker Township in the north end of the county 
for appointment to the board. Ms. Zimmer stated state statute requires a township trustee on the 
board and would like Sandra Putt to be considered. She stated if Sandra was appointed she would 
be from Jordan township which is in central Jasper County. Ms. Zimmer stated they would like Ed 
Cain from the highway department, who is knowledgeable about all parts of the county to be 
considered. Ms. Zimmer stated they would like to see someone from the Ag. community be on the 
board and would like Scott Baylor to be considered. She stated he is in the very southern end of 
Carpenter Township. Ms. Zimmer stated Summer Brinkman is from the Purdue Extension. 

Ms. Zimmer stated she is writing a grant through Clean Water Indiana which is funded through 
the State Soil Conservation board specifically to address invasive species. She stated with that 
grant they will try to seek out additional funding for this budget but also to address private 
landowner needs through cost share opportunities. She stated they should know by this fall if they 
were successful with the bid. 

Mr. Bontreger stated if they appoint Ed as the highway representative can he appoint a proxy ifhe 
needs to, if he can't make a meeting, how would that work. Attorney Beaver stated the 
Commissioners would make the appointment of one person who would be a representative of the 
highway department and that one person would be expected to attend. He stated they may be able 
to develop an internal proxy process to approve proxy voting so the board member, such as Ed if 
he can't make it, can have a representative who is there to vote as his proxy. Mr. Bontreger stated 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE62 

ATTORNEY BEAVER CONT'D: he would not want to stretch Ed thinner but Cory or one of his 
second in command could handle it. Ms. Zimmer stated she just looked over the statue and it says 
either the superintendent or appointed proxy. Mr. Haberlin stated the Surveyors office already has 
someone who is a certified sprayer, they have trucks with tanks, and they already spray 
ditches/ditch banks. Ms. Zimmer stated the SWCD is very interested in working alongside both 
Vince's and Ed's office. She stated she has had several meetings with Vince and Aaron has been 
involved in those meetings because they see it as a collective problem. Ms. Zimmer stated the law 
does not have the Surveyor listed. Ms. Zimmer stated these are public meetings so there is no 
reason they cannot be there. Attorney Beaver stated there is a lot of flexibility built into the process. 
He stated the actual statute as to the board says that the board consist of one representative from 
the county highway department or an appointee of the County Commissioners so that does not tie 
the Commissioners to the organizational hierarchy of the highway department. Mr. Bontreger 
stated so their appointee would actually be Aaron instead of Ed Cain. Attorney Beaver stated he 
can amend the wording of the ordinance right now. Mr. Bontreger stated Aaron is the GIS expert 
when it comes to mapping as well. Ms. Zimmer stated they will have a skilled person in that area 
as well. Attorney Beaver stated he can handwrite in the change of the wording on the original 
ordinance that the Commissioners sign. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the ordinance for 
reestablishing the weed board, Ordinance 07-07-2025A, with the proposed changes to the 
membership. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. Ordinance 07-07-202SA 

Mr. Hilton made a motion to appoint to the weed board: Sandra Putt township trustee, SWCD 
representative Jim Martin, Agriculture representative Scott Baylor, Commissioner appointee 
Aaron Knezevic, and Summer Brinkmen from Purdue Extension. Mr. Standish seconded, and the 
motion carried. 

Ms. Zimmer introduced their newest employee, Casey Lane. She stated Casey has an Agribusiness 
Degree from Purdue and has managed the Pleasant Ridge Elevator for four years. She stated Casey 
is the District Coordinator and Treasurer. 

STOP SIGN ORDINANCE: Attorney Beaver stated this was discussed at the last Commissioners 
meeting about a T intersection that has one stop sign and as a result of paving the roadway you 
have faster vehicle speeds. He stated a notice of public hearing for placement of stop sign as set 
out in this ordinance was advertised. Mr. Bontreger stated the ordinance is regarding county road 
450 South, westbound, at 320 East and county road 320 East northbound at county road 450 South 
stop signs shall be placed at the intersection of the preceding locations. Mr. Bontreger opened the 
meeting to public comment. There were no public comments. Mr. Bontreger closed the public 
hearing. Mr. Hilton stated he has not heard any comments about the proposed stop signs and the 
stop signs are needed. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve Ordinance 07-07-2025B as presented 
for the stop signs at 320 East and 450 South, Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 
Ordinance 07-07-2025B 

Attorney Beaver stated they are in the late stages of circulating a draft internally that will then go 
on to Nipsco for the Road Use Agreement. He stated they are operating under a memorandum of 
understanding that was previously approved by the Commissioners and he is comfortable with that 
MOU continuing. He stated he hopes to have an agreement for the Commissioners to approve 
during the joint session. Mr. Standish stated they are trying to make sure that they are making the 
best deal, not only for Nipsco to be able to do their project, but for the county to ensure that we 
are protected and not spending taxpayer dollars on maintaining the roads while they are doing their 
projects. Mr. Hilton asked how would verbiage be incorporated in the road use agreement for the 
unexpected state road closures for vehicles to get to the permitted roads. He stated right now there 
are 2 counties that have bridges out so when those trucks are coming through to get to the lay down 
yards their main cut across is through Jasper County infrastructure that is not on the road use 
agreement. Attorney Beaver stated they have not circulated anything back to Nipsco yet so they 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE63 

ATTORNEY BEAVER CONT'D: can feel free to weigh in. Mr. Standish stated the easiest thing 
to do is just put in there that we mandate that they follow the approved State detour routes and will 
be held liable if they do not follow it. Attorney Beaver stated INDOT is supposed to give the 
county notice of a road closure so that the county can assess whether there would be a local detour. 
He stated INDOT directs everybody to use a state detour but then everybody uses a local road and 
tears it up during the project. He stated the county can actually designate the local path back to 
INDOT and INDOT will reimburse the· county for damage to the road as a result of that. Mr. 
Haberlin stated when INDOT does that they say stay on the state detour road and then they come 
to you and you bot create a local road agreement. He stated you and INDOT pick the local road 
that will be the most direct route that traffic would normally go if they are going to go around. He 
stated INDOT then comes in and films everything. He stated then you can request to be paid for 
damages. He stated has only heard of one instance where a county was reimbursed for damages 
and it was chump change that they received. He stated if you say you do not want them on your 
roads then you have to have the Sheriff there to arrest them. Mr. Bontreger stated to Attorney 
Beaver, it may be implied for them to use the state detour but if Attorney Beaver could throw a 
sentence in there stating it plainly that would be great. Attorney Beaver stated he will add that 
sentence. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

JACK HABERLIN: Mr. Haberlin stated bridge 1002 in Remington needs a little additional work, 
additional bent work, around $60,000. He stated the state is on board with it so they are going to 
cover that with the 80 20 match grant. Mr. Haberlin stated they received a letter from REMC and 
they had to bore five places with the wind projects. Mr. Haberlin stated Nipsco is going to reroute 
a gas main down around Remington. Mr. Haberlin stated Kendall talked about a data collection 
center over by Nipsco. Mr. Standish asked when TJ Hodges is coming, and Mr. Haberlin stated 
they are coming. Mr. Haberlin stated the Surveyor had a meeting with REMC last week. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Tim from V S stated there was going to be a temporary closure tomorrow on 900 because they are 
bringing in their control housing for the switchyard at 231 and 900. He stated they went through 
the proper notification channel for that. He stated there has been a few dust control issues last week 
but they were quick to address them. 

Brandon from BF and S, Carpenter Wind Farm, stated it has ben ongoing as usual, with no real 
issues with the road use agreement. He stated they still have cameras set up monitoring the area 
but they are really keeping their vehicles under control. He stated 280 West did get fully stabilized. 
He stated he did check with Ed, and the county did receive their check from EDP for 
reimbursement for the maintenance that the county did. He also reviewed work that was completed 
on drain tiles. He stated they have had some dust complaints and one mailbox that was damaged. 

Judy Caney asked if there were any plans yet for next year's 250th year celebration. Mr. Bontreger 
stated they are looking to put money in the budget next year for a celebration. 

Bryce, City of Rensselaer, gave an update on the sewer and water extension to 165. He stated the 
gas department is still 2 weeks out and the casings will be delivered on Wednesday. 

Brett Malin, 9246 Aspen Court DeMotte Indiana. Mr. Malin stated he is concerned when the 
county talks about expanding. He stated he would like to make sure that the county does not tum 
into something like a Merrillville, or Hobart. He stated when expanding there is often a push for 
low income housing, apartments, and those sorts of things and his concerns is the rise of crime and 
feeling like a stranger where you are. He stated he does not want the county to fall into the law of 
unintended consequences, that sort of thing. He stated to please exercise concern about where 
things could end up and there are a lot of decisions that we make that we cannot undo. He stated 
please use caution, let Merrillville and Hobart be Merrillville and Hobart rather then bring it here. 
Mr. Bontreger stated that is why they are interested in this housing study so that the county 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

July 7, 2025 

PAGE64 

PUBLIC COMMENT CONT'D: can map it out. Mr. Bontreger stated we enjoy our quality oflife 
here and do not want to see Crown Point style development. 

CIA INSURANCE: Mr. Bontreger stated the Commissioners had an executive session and were 
presented with renewal for the insurance as recommended by insurance agent, CIA Insurance Stace 
Pickering. Mr. Bontreger stated they are all familiar with who that was and what it all entails. Mr. 
Hilton made a motion to approve the updated insurance carrier for 2026, Mr. Standish seconded, 
and the motion carried. 

There being no further business, Mr. Hilton made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Standish 
seconded, and the motion carried. 

ATTEST: <JZ.iC 
Rein Bontreger, President 

Diana Boersma, Auditor of Jasper County 

Hilton, Vice President 


